TO: Michelle Metteer, Manager
DATE: May 17, 2024

FROM: James Mann, Financia W/

RE: Comments on Battle Mountain Metro Districts Financials / Review of White Bear
Ankele Correspondence dated April 15, 2024

MEMO

Council requested that | provide comments on the financial information contained in the draft
service plan for the proposed Battle Mountain metropolitan districts 1-4 and to review the
correspondence from District attorneys White Bear Ankele which was submitted to Council.
Because metropolitan district debt cannot legally attach to the Town (creating direct liability),
my review is focused on (a) the statutory requirements for the Council to approve the districts,
and (b) impacts to future owners of property within the metropolitan districts and those issues
which may end up in the Council chambers due to citizen frustrations.

In looking at the overall plan for the creation of a metropolitan district, which as you know is a
financing tool commonly used throughout Colorado to assist in fostering economic
development, a review is based on a wide variety of inputs with the goal of ensuring that an
approving governing body can affirmatively state that (Title 32-1-203(2)):-

a) There is sufficient existing and projected need for organized service in the area to be
serviced by the proposed special district.

b) The existing services in the area to be served by the proposed special district is
inadequate for present and projected growth.

c) The proposed special district is capable of providing economical and sufficient service to
the area within its proposed boundaries.

d) The area to be included in the proposed special district has, or will have, the financial
ability to discharge the proposed indebtedness on a reasonable basis.

Once the proponent has presented its information, the Town is compelled to make a
determination on the above four statements and can either approve, disapprove, or to
conditionally approve the service plan subject to the submission of information relating to, or
the modification of, the proposed service plan or by agreement with the proponents of the
proposed service plan (Title 32-1-204.5).

The Battle Mountain draft service plan does not contain detailed information to affirmatively
make the above statements. The service plan contains general categories of infrastructure (and
estimated costs values) that is anticipated to be constructed as part of the development.
Typically, there would be more mature development plans available to review, including
preliminary engineering or architectural survey showing how the proposed services are to be
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provide (Title 32-1-202(1)(c)), that would back the assumptions that are included in the project
cost estimates and overall financial plan. There are several line items, including public
transportation bus stops, Hwy 24 improvements, and utility treatment infrastructure that
information is completely lacking other than an estimate of costs.

Further, there is no clarity on what infrastructure will be owned and operated by the districts or
other entities. This information will be necessary to truly understand the ongoing operational
costs of the districts that will ultimately fall back on the district residents. The financial plan
currently calls for a 10-mill levy on property to support the district operations. Without an
understanding of what infrastructure will be owned and operated by whom, it is impossible to
know whether the 10-mill levy will be adequate to operate the districts. Again, these would be
costs that would fall to residents of the districts.

The Town Attorney has explained that the Settlement Agreement with Battle Mountain does not
contemplate the development of detailed plans at this time as those are associated with
development approvals for individual phases. Still, Battle Mountain should provide the Town
with more detail about how the cost estimates were derived and explain how infrastructure will
be constructed and financed if the cost estimates prove to be inaccurate. The engineering
estimates are completely fungible and to the extent one line item is overstated, those funds
may be moved to fund a line item that is understated. Regardless, once the bonding authority is
granted, it is unlikely that as long as the development can support the repayment, the

maximum bonding authority will be used. The Town should be somewhat cautious about
approving a development that is highly reliant on District financing that may be inadequate to
meet the needs to implement the concept (criteria c and d).

Otherwise, the cost estimates in the service plan do demonstrate a need for services in the
Battle Mountain development area to meet future population growth (criteria a and b).

With respect to the financial ability of the districts to discharge the proposed indebtedness on a
reasonable basis, | have the following observations:

e The plan as presented will result in indebtedness of $226,000/per residential lot, which
is not an insignificant number.

e With the anticipated residential value equaling approximately $1,850,000, the 50-mill
debt levy will result in an annual property tax bill for the district of $6,615, not including
operations, in addition to the other levying jurisdictions, again not an insignificant
number.

e With the anticipated affordable housing residential value equaling approximately
$800,000, the 50-mill debt levy will result in an annual property tax bill for the district of
approximately $2,000, not including operations and levies of other jurisdictions. This
additional tax amount will limit to some degree entry into the affordable housing
program (or size of house that can be acquired) by persons with limited income.
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e |tis anticipated that the tax amounts will increase 6% biennially as property values
increase for the 30 years that the service plan allows a debt mill levy.

As has been previously discussed with Council, the additional taxes imposed by a metropolitan
district can make those residents in the districts resistant to a future voter-approved tax
increase.

Many of my original comments regarding the overall viability of the plan (interest rates,
issuance costs, coverage ratios) have not been succinctly addressed in the White Bear Ankele
correspondence, and thus remain outstanding concerns.

As these will ultimately be Town residents, the Town as the approving authority, is the last line
of defense for these future tax payers. These future taxpayers may come to the Town with their
complaints long after the developer has completed the development and the residents are left
maintaining infrastructure, some of which will have a life cycle of 20 years but will have long-
standing indebtedness that will last 30 years.

All the above being said, Title 32-1-204.5 does allow for the approving authority to conditionally
approve the service plan subject to the submission of additional information relating to or the
modification of the proposed service plan. If the Town is interested in providing the proponent
a conditional approval, conditions that the Town may wish to include in such approval may
include, but not be limited to the following:

1. Affirmation of and plan of providing the 20% of the proposed housing units as
“affordable”. Include estimated values, property tax treatment, maintenance of unit-
stock as “affordable” process, etc. May further want to have the proponent
explain/defend their “definition” of affordable. For example — just stating that the
affordable unit will be $800,000 doesn’t mean that level of housing works for the
community.

2. Submittal of detailed development plans, including infrastructure development plans to
the Town prior to any commencement of development. Prior to commencement of
development activities, proponent shall provide the Town with a detailed site concept
plan, grading plan, underground infrastructure plan for water, sewer, wastewater and
other utilities to the Town, open space and recreation plan subject to approval Town
Council and submit a detailed transportation plan for the development.

3. Detailed operational plan, including cost of operating the districts once development is
complete. Details of infrastructure ownership, maintenance, etc. that will also lend
additional detail/clarity to the whether a 10-mill levy is going to be adequate for
operations.

4. Discussion of whether the proponent will be relying on a Homeowners Association to
maintain, monitor or other lend operations to the districts.
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5. Current market data supporting the proposed financing plan.
6. Economic impact analysis of the Battle Mountain Development on the Town’s finances.

The above is not an all-inclusive list of items that the Town may wish further information and
clarification on prior to allowing the proponent to proceed with site preparation and
construction of infrastructure.

If a conditional approval is granted, the resolution giving such approval should have a
comprehensive list of the items that are to be requested from the proponent included in the
text of the resolution to further meet the requirements of Title 32.



